

VIRGINIA ACTS OF ASSEMBLY — CHAPTER

An Act to amend and reenact §§ 18.2-60, 18.2-60.1, 18.2-83, 18.2-152.7:1, and 18.2-430 of the Code of Virginia, relating to threats and harassment of certain officials and property; venue.

[H 1627]

Approved

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:

1. That §§ 18.2-60, 18.2-60.1, 18.2-83, 18.2-152.7:1, and 18.2-430 of the Code of Virginia are amended and reenacted as follows:

§ 18.2-60. Threats of death or bodily injury to a person or member of his family; threats of death or bodily injury to persons on school property; threats of death or bodily injury to health care providers; penalty.

A. 1. Any person who knowingly communicates, in a writing, including an electronically transmitted communication producing a visual or electronic message, a threat to kill or do bodily injury to a person, regarding that person or any member of his family, and the threat places such person in reasonable apprehension of death or bodily injury to himself or his family member, is guilty of a Class 6 felony. However, any person who violates this subsection with the intent to commit an act of terrorism as defined in § 18.2-46.4 is guilty of a Class 5 felony.

2. Any person who communicates a threat, in a writing, including an electronically transmitted communication producing a visual or electronic message, to kill or do bodily harm, (i) on the grounds or premises of any elementary, middle or secondary school property, (ii) at any elementary, middle or secondary school-sponsored event or (iii) on a school bus to any person or persons, regardless of whether the person who is the object of the threat actually receives the threat, and the threat would place the person who is the object of the threat in reasonable apprehension of death or bodily harm, is guilty of a Class 6 felony.

B. Any person who orally makes a threat to kill or to do bodily injury to (i) any employee of any elementary, middle or secondary school, while on a school bus, on school property or at a school-sponsored activity or (ii) any health care provider as defined in § 8.01-581.1 who is engaged in the performance of his duties in a hospital as defined in § 18.2-57 or in an emergency room on the premises of any clinic or other facility rendering emergency medical care, unless the person is on the premises of the hospital or emergency room of the clinic or other facility rendering emergency medical care as a result of an emergency custody order pursuant to § 37.2-808, involuntary temporary detention order pursuant to § 37.2-809, involuntary hospitalization order pursuant to § 37.2-817, or emergency custody order of a conditionally released acquittee pursuant to § 19.2-182.9, is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor.

A prosecution pursuant to this section may be either in the county, city or town in which the communication was made or received *or in the City of Richmond if venue cannot otherwise be established and the person threatened is one of the following officials or employees of the Commonwealth and such official or employee was threatened while engaged in the performance of his public duties or because of his position with the Commonwealth: the Governor, Governor-elect, Lieutenant Governor, Lieutenant Governor-elect, Attorney General, or Attorney General-elect, a member or employee of the General Assembly, a justice of the Supreme Court of Virginia, or a judge of the Court of Appeals of Virginia.*

§ 18.2-60.1. Threatening the Governor or his immediate family.

Any person who shall knowingly and willfully send, deliver or convey, or cause to be sent, delivered or conveyed, to the Governor or his immediate family any threat to take the life of or inflict bodily harm upon the Governor or his immediate family, whether such threat be oral or written, ~~shall be~~ *is* guilty of a Class 6 felony. *A violation of this section may be prosecuted in the jurisdiction in which the communication was made or received or in the City of Richmond if venue cannot otherwise be established.*

§ 18.2-83. Threats to bomb or damage buildings or means of transportation; false information as to danger to such buildings, etc.; punishment; venue.

A. Any person ~~(a)~~ *(i)* who makes and communicates to another by any means any threat to bomb, burn, destroy or in any manner damage any place of assembly, building or other structure, or any means of transportation, or ~~(b)~~ *(ii)* who communicates to another, by any means, information, knowing the same to be false, as to the existence of any peril of bombing, burning, destruction or damage to any such place of assembly, building or other structure, or any means of transportation, ~~shall be~~ *is* guilty of

57 a Class 5 felony; provided, however, that if such person ~~be~~ is under ~~fifteen~~ 15 years of age, he ~~shall be~~
 58 is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor.

59 B. A violation of this section may be prosecuted either in the jurisdiction from which the
 60 communication was made or in the jurisdiction where the communication was received *or in the City of*
 61 *Richmond if venue cannot otherwise be established and the property threatened is owned by the*
 62 *Commonwealth and located within the Capitol District.*

63 **§ 18.2-152.7:1. Harassment by computer; penalty.**

64 If any person, with the intent to coerce, intimidate, or harass any person, shall use a computer or
 65 computer network to communicate obscene, vulgar, profane, lewd, lascivious, or indecent language, or
 66 make any suggestion or proposal of an obscene nature, or threaten any illegal or immoral act, he ~~shall~~
 67 ~~be~~ is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. *A violation of this section may be prosecuted in the jurisdiction*
 68 *in which the communication was made or received or in the City of Richmond if venue cannot otherwise*
 69 *be established and the person subjected to the act is one of the following officials or employees of the*
 70 *Commonwealth and such official or employee was subjected to the act while engaged in the*
 71 *performance of his public duties or because of his position with the Commonwealth: the Governor,*
 72 *Governor-elect, Lieutenant Governor, Lieutenant Governor-elect, Attorney General, or Attorney*
 73 *General-elect, a member or employee of the General Assembly, a justice of the Supreme Court of*
 74 *Virginia, or a judge of the Court of Appeals of Virginia.*

75 **§ 18.2-430. Venue for offenses under this article.**

76 Any person violating any of the provisions of this article may be prosecuted either in the county or
 77 city from which he called or in the county or city in which the call was received, *or in the City of*
 78 *Richmond if venue cannot otherwise be established and the person subjected to the act is one of the*
 79 *following officials or employees of the Commonwealth and such official or employee was subjected to*
 80 *the act while engaged in the performance of his public duties or because of his position with the*
 81 *Commonwealth: the Governor, Governor-elect, Lieutenant Governor, Lieutenant Governor-elect,*
 82 *Attorney General, or Attorney General-elect, a member or employee of the General Assembly, a justice*
 83 *of the Supreme Court of Virginia or a judge of the Court of Appeals of Virginia.*